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<CONTINUED>  
DCKA-2011-R-150: FY11 DC Streetlight Asset Management 

  Addendum No. 3 

 1) Update the page numbering; 2) Revise Performance Measure (PM) 67; 3) Revise Performance 
Measure (PM) 69; and 4) Revise Performance Measure (PM) 70.   

7.   Delete “A02 Appendix N S. Capitol Bridge Components” and replace with “RA02 Appendix N: S. 
Capitol Bridge Components” to update the Asset Included List: “The main feeder from PEPCO’s 
underground transformers on the Anacostia & DC ends including conduits, wiring, cabinets, 
switchgear, and all related equipment.”  Include pumping and telephone systems, and update the 
Asset Not Included list by removing these two maintenance components. Video Surveillance 
System does not exist, and thus it was removed from the Asset Not Included list.   

 
8. Add “A03 Appendix P: Washington Gas Energy Services (WGES) Contract” to Appendix P: Baseline 

Cost for Energy Usage. 
 
9. Delete file “A02 Appendix U Currently Evaluated LED” and replace with “RA02 Appendix U: 

Currently Evaluated LED” to add Leotek fixtures to the list and remove StrayLight from the list.  
 
10.   Revise Addendum No. 2 item 11 as: “Delete page 72 and replace with R72 to revise the referenced 

sections in Section G.3.4.4.5.” 
 
11.  Revise Addendum No. 2 item 19 by deleting “(TBD)” from the text. 
 
12.  Revise Response to Question 22 in Addendum No.2 to include Leotek in the list and remove 

StrayLight from the list. See the attached “RA02 Appendix U Currently Evaluated LED”.   Amend the 
Response to Question 22 text that the specifications for currently evaluated LED fixtures are not 
available.   

 
13.  Revise Response to Question 69 in Addendum No. 2.  The estimated backlog activity is as follows:  
 

 
 

14.  Revise Response to Question 94a in Addendum No. 2 as “Column N contains errors.  Disregard 
Column N from “Street and Alley Lights” worksheet of “Appendix D 02: Street and Alley Light 
Inventory GIS Database” file. The website to look up and download GIS data: http://data.dc.gov/.” 

 

Backlog Activity Work Order
No current 50
Light out 100
Pole repairs 25
Replace T-base 25
Trim tree 25
Estimated Total 225
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C.1.11 It shall be noted that the Contractor must have a good working relationship with PEPCO, 
Verizon, Comcast and the Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority (WMATA) 
for the successful performance of this contract. This relationship is the key because of 
issues such as manhole access, and emergency repairs. The District will help to facilitate 
this relationship. 

 
C.1.12 Documents referenced in this RFP but not included as an attachment will be made 

available for public viewing in the bid room, which is located on the 3rd floor of the 
Reeves Center, 2000 14th Street, N.W. Washington, DC. 

 
C.2 APPLICABLE DOCUMENTS  
 

The Contractor shall use the documents in the following table to guide its work on this 
contract.  The Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring that it has and is using the 
latest version of these documents at the time that the affected work is being conducted.  
These documents are incorporated by reference and will be made a part of the contract. 
 

Number Title Date 
1 District of Columbia Department of Transportation Standard 

Specifications for Highways and Structures (Blue Book)5
Latest Edition 
(Appendix G)  

2 District of Columbia Streetlight Policy and Design Guidelines Latest Edition 
(Appendix G) 

3 OSHA Latest Edition 
(http://www.osha.gov/) 

4 National Electrical Code Latest Edition 
 (DC Website 
(http://www.dcra.dc.gov/D
C/DCRA/Permits/Constructi
on+Codes ) 

5 DC Electrical Code (DCMR 12 C) Latest Edition 
(http://os.dc.gov/os/cwp/vi
ew,a,1207,q,639999.asp    
Purchase at Office of 
Documents and 
Administrative Issuances 
441 4th Street, N.W., Suite 
512  South Washington, 
D.C. 20001) 

6 Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) Latest Edition 
(FHWA 
website http://mutcd.fhwa.
dot.gov/pdfs/2009/pdf_ind
ex.htm) 

7 Work Area Traffic Control Manual (Work Zone Safety) Latest Edition 
(Included in MUTCD) 

8 213 Excavations and Restorations (Utility Lines) Latest Edition 

                                                 
5 The Standard Specifications for Highways and Structures, 2009 Section 103.02 contains the outdated CBE 
clauses.  “CBE preferences” do not apply to this procurement.  
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Number Title Date 
(Blue Book) 

9 Diagrams, Tests and Regulations – Tree Trimming Diagram, 
Wood Pole Test, Utility Cut Regulation 

Latest Edition 
(Appendices G, I & J) 

10 South Capitol Street Bridge Electrical Control System 
Operation and Maintenance Manual 

Latest Edition 
(Appendix N) 

11 District of Columbia Department of Transportation Standard 
Specifications for Highways and Structures - Section 107.16 
UTILITY PROTECTIVE ALERT 

Latest Edition 
(Appendix G) 

12 Washington, DC Historic Districts and Streets (Map) Latest Edition 
(Appendix Q) 

13 Architect of the Capitol (Map) Latest Edition 
(Appendix R) 
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B. Asset Management Standards and Guidelines 
 Performance measures and standards are provided in Appendix B. The 

performance standards (“Good” or “4” Level of Service) represent the minimum 
acceptable standards for the electrical control systems. 
 

C. Management Information 
The South Capitol Street Bridge Electrical Control System Operation and 
Maintenance Manual has been included as Appendix N.  Plans will be available in 
the bid room. 

 
C.6.5 Pole Painting (Additive Alternate Batch CLIN 0011) 

The Contractor shall paint a batch of 100 cast iron, steel, or composite poles at the 
direction of the COTR. This CLIN may be exercised multiple times depending on the 
availability of funding.  Offerors should prepare standalone pricing for a single batch.  
For the purposes of estimating Offerors should assume all work will be accomplished 
within a single month from NTP.  Offerors should note this work is exclusive of 
CLINs 0001-0009 and should NOT be considered part of the fixed price offered.  
When painting poles, the Contractor shall use wet paint for cast iron poles and 
powder coat for steel poles.  Offerors should note that older iron poles may be coated 
in a lead based paint. 
 

C.6.6     Upgrade/Convert Lighting Fixtures (Additive Alternate Batch CLIN 0012) 
 The Contractor shall at the direction of the COTR upgrade/convert a batch of 100 

lighting fixtures, of which approximately fifty percent will be LED conversions 
/upgrades.  The scope of the upgrade includes changes from one wattage (or type) to 
another.  Specifications for the CLIN0012 Upgrade/Conversion follow Special 
Requirements set forth in Sections C.6.2 .C and C.6.3.C.  This CLIN may be 
exercised multiple times depending on the availability of funding.  Offerors should 
prepare standalone pricing and technical approach for the upgrade of a batch of 100 
lighting fixtures.  CLIN 0012 pricing should incorporate expected maintenance 
savings for the remainder of the potential contract period.  LED fixtures and lamps 
installed must meet DDOT specifications.  Exercised portion of LED 
upgrade/conversion under CLIN0012 is in addition to the 2,500 LED replacement 
that DDOT plans to implement by 2015. 

 
C.6.7    Remote Monitoring Systems Installation (Additive Alternate Batch CLIN 0013) 
 The Contractor shall install new photo control communications nodes and maintain 

the entire Remote Monitoring Systems at the node level.  This CLIN may be 
exercised multiple times depending on the availability of funding.  The minimum 
installation per occurrence of this optional CLIN should be based on 100 nodes.  
ROAM installation and maintenance costs include purchase, 5 yr service fee, 
installation, setup, and configuration of 100 Photo control nodes. The Offeror is 
reminded that DDOT desires to take advantage of innovations as early as practical in 
the five year contract while keeping the lump sum per CLIN relatively flat over the 
contract optional five year period.  
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 DDOT has installed ROAM components on selected locations along alleys, and 
planned to expand the Remote Monitoring System as the funding becomes available.

 DDOT will distribute the new nodes in a manner compatible with the existing 
configuration.  The District may evaluate other types of monitoring systems per 
Offeror’s proposal.  See Appendix T for ROAM

A.  Installations 

 specifications.  
 

The Contractor shall be responsible for installing new nodes according to the 
plan and specifications provided by DDOT or his designee (or representatives). 
The Contractor shall be responsible for the monitoring service fee for nodes.8 
 

B.  Repairs 
The contractor shall be responsible for maintaining all the nodes and meeting 
the performance standards indicated in Appendix B. 

 
C.  System Operability 

The contractor shall be responsible for maintaining the system operability at 
the performance standards indicated in Appendix B.  

 

 
C.7  EMERGENCY RESPONSE 
 
C.7.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating with the COTR, the 

Metropolitan Police and other emergency response organizations in its response to 
emergency incidents related to the assets for which it is responsible. For this contract, 
this includes incidents related to downed poles or cable, damaged overhead guide 
sign structures, collision-damaged tunnel lights, and other conditions affecting the 
safety of the traveling public. The Contractor shall respond promptly and make the 
roadway safe (by removing hazards from the roadway, if needed), provide emergency 
traffic control until the authorities arrive and perform other related activities as 
needed. The Contractor shall be available for response to emergencies 24 hours per 
day, 7 days per week. Emergency response is not a separate bid item, but is included 
in each bid item. Emergency response is required as part of the firm fixed price 
portion of the bid for each item and an emergency response plan is required as part of 
the Contractor’s work plan. The Contractor shall build the price for emergency 
response into the prices for managing and maintaining the fixed price assets. The 
Contractor shall also respond in a timely manner to emergency situations such as 
series circuit outages and multiple circuit outages. The Contractor shall coordinate 
such situations with the COTR and PEPCO immediately upon notification or 
discovery of the outage. 

 
    
 
                                                 

8 The contractor is not required to add new gateways to the system. 
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Addendum No 3: RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS AND REQUEST FOR 
CLARIFICATION 

ASSET MANAGEMENT OF DC STREETLIGHT (DCKA-2011-R-0150) 
 
Following are the District’s response to the questions submitted as of COB September 26, 2011. 
 
Question 1: Please confirm that pursuant to Section 5 of the General Provisions that if the City 
or DDOT is sued for failing to maintain the street lights that the Contractor will be responsible 
for defending the lawsuit(s) and paying all attorney fees, settlement costs and damages that may 
result from such lawsuit(s).  
Response: Yes. (No such Section 5).  All assets are under the contractor’s responsibility. 
 
Question 2: Is a completed J 10 (attachment) due with the proposal submission?  
Response: Yes. J.10 must be completed and submitted with the proposal.  

 
Question 3: Should Innovation Plan proposals be bound separately from the Technical Volume 
or should the Innovation Plan be packaged as its own tabbed section within the Technical 
Proposal? If bound separately, then should offerors include one (1) original and ten (10) copies 
of the Innovation Plan as well?  
Response: Prospective Offerors shall submit two proposals under separate cover (binder): 1) 
Technical Proposal and 2) Price Proposal.  The OCP would expect that the Innovation Plan 
would be only one component of a prospective offeror’s Technical Proposal.  Refer L.2.5 of the 
RFP. 
 
Question 4: Is DDOT open to deviation from the 8.5” by 11” page-size requirement for a limited 
number of fold-out 11” by 17” pages?  
Response: Yes, if the information submitted is best suited to that page size. 
 
Question 5: Regarding section L.2.3 of the RFP, would the District prefer to receive each of the 
three proposal parts (Technical Proposal, Staffing/Management/QC/QA/Past Performance, and 
Price Proposal) in a separate 3-ring binder, or all three parts combined in one 3-ring binder?  If 
submitted as separate binders, the district would receive a total of 30 thin binders (10 copies of 
each part) from each offeror.  If submitted combined in one binder, the District would receive a 
total of 10 fairly thick binders (10 copies of complete proposal) from each offeror. 
Response: See Response to Question 3. 

 
Question 6: Regarding section L.2.3 and section L.2.5.B.5 of the RFP, does the District intend 
for offerors to submit the Innovation Plan as part of the Technical Proposal, or as a separate 
document in a separate 3-ring binder? 
Response: See Response to Question 3. 
 
Question 7: Regarding section L.2.3 of the RFP, will the District accept proposals in a sealed 
BOX rather than a sealed ENVELOPE?  Due to the length of the proposal and quantities 
requested, it will be difficult to submit proposals in an envelope. 
Response: Yes.  
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Question 8: Regarding section L.2.5.B.2 Summary of Work Plan and section L.2.5.B.5 
Innovation Plan.  Summary of Work subsections a, c, d, and e request the same information as 
Innovation Plan sections d, c, e, and f.  If the offeror is submitting an Innovation Plan, how 
should the information that the offeror provides in these subsections differ between the Summary 
of Work and Innovation Plan?  
Response: In addition to Work Plan, if a Prospective Offeror proposes “innovation,” it may 
include some aspects that are different from regular Work Plan.   
 
Question 9: Regarding section L.2.6.E.2 of the RFP (p 108), “project managers for each task 
area set forth in Section C of the RFP”, and section L.2.5.B.2, “each of the tasks set forth in 
Section C”.  Would the District please clarify whether the task areas set forth in Section C are the 
task areas identified in section C.1.1 labeled A-F on page 24-25, or are the task areas identified 
by CLINs 0001-0008, 0009, 0010, 0011, 0012, 0013. 
Response: Per Section L.2., Prospective Offerors to propose the staffing and management plan. 
 
Question 10: Would the District please clarify whether the Project Managers (for each of the 
task areas) referenced in section L.2.6.E.2 of the RFP (p 108) are also considered Key Personnel, 
in addition to the Key Personnel identified in section L.20 (Program Manager, Field Leads, and 
Master Electrician). 
Response:  Project Managers are considered key personnel. 
 
Question 11: Will bidders be given an opportunity to review all addendums and submit 
additional questions on same should additional clarification be necessary? 
Response:  Yes. Prospective offerors will be given the opportunity to submit additional 
questions in the event there is need for clarification. Additional questions shall be submitted no 
later than October 4th, 2011.  
 
Question 12: Addendum #2 makes significant changes to the RFP will DDOT consider 
extending the bid opening by 2 weeks?  
Response: The proposal submission date has been extended for one additional week.  See the 
Addendum No. 3 cover page. As a point of clarification, this procurement process is the 
competitive sealed proposal process.  Therefore there will be no public bid opening or sharing of 
price information with prospective offerors. 
 
Question 13:  Regarding A02 Attachment, DCKA-2011-R-0150 DC Streetlight R02 J.3 General 
(Wage) Decision Number: DC20080001 Construction Types: Heavy (Heavy and Sewer and 
Water Line) and Highway. This wage scale appears to apply to “construction projects” being that 
this is a service/maintenance contract and only requests repair, maintenance, replacement, 
modification, and relocation of DC street light assets do these rates apply? If so, please identify 
when these rates apply and the wage rates for Electrician & Apprentice.  
Response: The rates would only apply in circumstances where such activities as excavation and 
paving are required to replace cables.  
 
Question 14: Regarding the Service Contract Act provided in the RFP, are contractors to 
determine all wage rates from this scale for the repair, maintenance, replacement, modification, 
upgrade, and relocation of DC street light assets? There is about a $20.00 an hour difference 
between “Construction” and “Service” labor rates. Please confirm the wage rate for Electrician 
and Apprentice.  
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ELEC0026-001 06/01/2011 
Rates Fringes 
Electricians.....................$ 39.75 3%+13.10 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
  
23160 - Electrician, Maintenance                                             27.98 
HEALTH & WELFARE: $3.59 per hour 
 
 Response: The Contractor, its subcontractors, and lower tiered subcontractors shall use the 
wage rate or wage decision that is appropriate for the type of work that is being performed.  
 
Question 15:  Pursuant to the answers for Questions 3, 4 and 23:  
15a: Can we get a copy of the Pepco/WGES contract? 
Response:  Yes.  See the attached “A03 Appendix P: WGES Contract”. 
 
15b: Is the contract only for street lighting or is it part of a larger energy purchase for all city 
facilities? 
Response: WGES Contract is for DDOT.    
 
15c:  Is the WGES kilowatt hour charge fixed for the term of the contract? 
Response:  Yes. 
 
15d: If not, what determines the change and are there limits on changes? 
Response:  N.A. 
 
15e: What escalation factors are in the contract for either Pepco or WGES? 
Response:  See the attached “A03 Appendix P WGES Contract”. 
 
15f:  Can the contractor participate in the renegotiation of the end of the contract? 
Response:  No, however, the contractor can provide suggestions.   
 
Question 16: Will DC DDOT provide training to the successful bidder for working with and 
using the current DC Streetlight Maintenance Data Base work order system?  
Response:  Yes. 
 
Question 17: In preparing the material needed to meet all the performance measures and 
assumptions of what quantity will be needed, we have several questions to understand the age of 
the existing lamps on the system.  What was the last time the following assets were group re-
lamped and what was the frequency of the group re-lamping program for each over the last five 
years (the first asset management contract time frame):  
 

A. Incandescent street light fixtures? 
B. Incandescent alley lights fixtures?    
C. Mercury Vapor Street lights fixtures? 
D. Mercury Vapor Alley lights fixtures? 
E. HPS street light fixtures? 
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F. HPS alley light fixtures? 
G. Bridge lighting fixtures? 
H. Overhead guide signs? 
I. Navigation and obstruction light fixtures? 
J. Radio tower light fixtures? 
K. Welcome to Washington Sign light fixtures? 
L. Under deck light fixtures that will be under this contract? 
M. All underpass light fixtures that will be under this contract? 
N. All tunnel light fixtures that will be under this contract? 
O. Pedestrian over pass light fixtures? 
P. Bike trail light fixtures, solar powered? 
Q. Any Special lighting fixtures that were referenced in the RFP and will be included in this 

contract? 
R. Chinatown Archway light fixtures? 

 
Response: Potential Offerors shall refer to Response #40 included in Addendum No.2 -  iSLIMS 
data via the link: http://pilotdcsl.islims.com/searchEdit/se_WorkOrders_02.aspx   
 
Question 18: In the last Street Light Asset Management Contract there was a $100,000.00 
threshold on a single event failure of asset that would trigger a Change Order. This would allow 
the contractor to minimize his cost exposure up to $100,000.00 for the repair.  There is no stated 
clause in this RFP limiting that risk, it us unlimited.   
 
18a: Was there any failure during the last five years that required a Change Order? 
Response: No.   
 
18b: If so, what was involved? 
Response: N.A. 
 
18c: When did it happen? 
Response: N.A. 
 
18d: What was the scope and cost of the failure? 
Response: N.A.  
 
18e: Will DDOT consider limiting a onetime cost exposure to this contract as used in the past?   
Response:  No. The limitation that exists in the current contract was the result of contract 
negotiations.   Given the current scope of work, the Contractors liability and exposure is in 
accordance with the Indemnification Clause/Article, which is a provision of the Standard 
Contract Provisions for Supplies and Service and the Standard Specifications for Highways and 
Structures.    
 
Question 19: In the past DDOT has provided specifications indicating which assets were 
included for the South Capitol Street Bridge CLIN 09. As of now it only says “all electrical 
systems” without any clear definition.  Are we to assume full cost responsibility for the 
following components?  
A. Submarine cable 

http://pilotdcsl.islims.com/searchEdit/se_WorkOrders_02.aspx�
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B. Phone system 
C. Pump system 
D. Fan system 
E. Video surveillance system 
F. Transformers located off the bridge 
G. LED Lighting, street lighting, navigation lighting and house lighting on the entire bridge. 
H. Where is the explanation between the mechanical and the electrical system? For example 
if the motor is operating but the mechanical gears are sheared the toggles will not withdraw, 
which would clearly be a mechanical issue not an electrical issue.  
Response: See the revised “RA02 Appendix N: S. Capitol Bridge Components” in the 
Attachments. 
 
Question 20: Page 25 of 125 C.1.1 Bridge Light Poles 5. Understanding the nature of bridge 
light poles, very unique to each bridge, one in kind on the system, very expensive, most poles are 
not a standard item for any manufacturer, replacements must be custom made to order taking 
months to have built, please provide the following information:  
 
20a: Over the past five years, how many of the knockdown poles were on bridges? 
Response: Potential Offerors shall refer to Response #40 included in Addendum No.2 -  iSLIMS 
data via the link: http://pilotdcsl.islims.com/searchEdit/se_WorkOrders_02.aspx    
 
20b: How will DC DDOT use a custom made pole in the preference [performance] measures if 
one must be replaced? 
Response: If such an instance occurs, it will be adjusted individually.  The issue has not 
occurred during the current Asset Management contract. 
 
20c: Does DC DDOT have engineer drawings for each unique light pole on the following 
bridges? 
A. Key Bridge   
B. Whitehurst Freeway 
C. T Roosevelt Bridge over the Potomac River 
D. M Street, NW over Rock Creek Parkway 
E. 16th Street over Piney Branch Parkway 
F. Connecticut Ave, NW over Rock Creek  
G. Connecticut Ave, NW over Klingle Road 
Response: No. 
 
Question 21: Page 27 of 125 C.1.8 7. It is stated that “The contractor shall assume full 
responsibility for managing, maintaining, relocating, abandoning and preserving the assets 
described in this RFP, and providing the relevant data to DDOT.”  
 
21a: How many relocations of streetlights were done each of the past 5 years? 
Response: Potential Offerors shall refer to Response #40 included in Addendum No.2 -  iSLIMS 
data via the link: http://pilotdcsl.islims.com/searchEdit/se_WorkOrders_02.aspx 
   
21b: What was the split of relocations between the Wards (the quantity done per Ward)? 
Response: Potential Offerors shall refer to Response #40 included in Addendum No.2 -  iSLIMS 
data via the link: http://pilotdcsl.islims.com/searchEdit/se_WorkOrders_02.aspx 

http://pilotdcsl.islims.com/searchEdit/se_WorkOrders_02.aspx�
http://pilotdcsl.islims.com/searchEdit/se_WorkOrders_02.aspx�
http://pilotdcsl.islims.com/searchEdit/se_WorkOrders_02.aspx�


Page 6 of 7 

   
21c: What type of poles were involved? 
Response: Potential Offerors shall refer to Response #40 included in Addendum No.2 -  iSLIMS 
data via the link: http://pilotdcsl.islims.com/searchEdit/se_WorkOrders_02.aspx 
   
21d: What was the split between streetlights and alley lights relocated? 
Response: Potential Offerors shall refer to Response #40 included in Addendum No.2 -  iSLIMS 
data via the link: http://pilotdcsl.islims.com/searchEdit/se_WorkOrders_02.aspx 
   
21e: Does DC DDOT direct the contractor as to the new location of the moved asset? 
Response: Yes.  
 
Question 22: Page 55 of 125 C.6.5 Pole Painting (Additive Alternate Batch CLIN 0011) 8. Since 
steel pole must be powder coated, this process must be done in an indoor environment.  Poles 
would have to be removed, sent away or a replacement pole installed.   
Response: This statement is misleading.  Powder coating and painting can be achieved without 
removing the poles.  Contractors are to propose the best suitable methods.   Also see the “RA02 
Appendix B: Performance Measures” PM67 in the Attachments. 
 
DDOT provides responses to the following questions only: 
 
22a: How many poles will DC DDOT allow to be removed at one time? 
Response: Contractor to propose. Note that Contractor is required to maintain the lighting level 
(same lumen) per removal and comply with the applicable performance measures.   
 
22b: How many poles will be allowed to be removed per block? 
Response: At Contractor’s discretion.  
 
22c: Will the batch of 100 be citywide or tightly grouped together? 
Response: Citywide.  DDOT intends to group poles as close as possible for each request. 
 
22d: Has DC DDOT tested the older Cast Iron poles for lead Paint? 
Response: Yes.  DDOT tested one area.  
 
22e: If so what percentage tested contain lead paint? 
Response: The area (in Georgetown) tested was in a concentrated area with old cast iron poles 
that were install prior to the lead-based paint ban in 1978. Enough samples were tested and it was 
determined that all 800 of these cast iron poles contained lead. The test was conducted for a 
specific area and does not provide the accurate percentage for the city. 
 
Note that the old cast iron poles prior to the introduction of lead paint regulation constitute small 
portion of the entire Cast Iron Poles citywide.  There are many cast iron poles installed after 
1978 which do not contain lead in the paint.   
 
22f: Can the Cast Iron poles be encapsulation with wet paint? 
Response: Yes.  As long as the aesthetic is not compromised. 
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22g: Must the Cast Iron Poles be stripped of the lead paint before painting? 
Response: Yes.  If the encapsulation method is not conducted.   
 
Question 23: Page 55 of 125 C.6.7 Remote Monitoring System Installation (Additive Alternate 
Batch CLIN 0013) Understanding the Remote Monitoring System functionality and the need to 
position the gateways close to the nodes.   
 
23a: Will the distance between the group of 100 nodes and gateway be close enough to allow 
normal communication to occur between them using only one gateway per 100 nodes? 
Response: Batch CLIN 13 ROAM installation will not include gateway purchase, service fee, or 
installation. Prospective Offerors consider costing for purchase, 5 yr service fee, installation, 
setup, and configuration of 100 Photo control nodes. See revised pages R54-55 of the RFP and  
“RA02 Appendix B: Performance Measures” PMs 69-71 in the Attachments”. 
 
23b: Or must the offeror consider one node to one gateway?  
Response: See Response to Question 22a above. 
 
Question 24: The response to question 94a stated to see revised appendix N File 02: Street and 
Alley Light Inventory GIS Database. However, Appendix N File 02 was not included in the CD 
that was supplied with Addendum #2. Can DDOT please provide the revised Appendix N? The 
response also stated the offerer can download GIS data from data.dc.gov. The only file that I 
could locate was DDOT via DC GIS which shows the location of the streetlights on Google 
Earth.  Is there another location where the offerer can locate revised appendix N? 

 
Response: There is an erratum in the Response to Question 94a. Appendix D File 02 instead of 
Appendix N.  Disregard Column N in “Street and Alley Lights” worksheet of “Appendix D 02: 
Street and Alley Light Inventory GIS Database” file. 
 
The website to look up and download GIS data: http://data.dc.gov/ .   As indicated in the table 
above, the third column is for Google Earth.  To the right, in the 4th column, there is a green 
button that is to download the database.  Special Lights are also on the download section. 
 

http://data.dc.gov/�
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RA02 Appendix B Performance Measures
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Ne
w #

CLIN PM Type Performance Measure Sample 5 - Excellent 4 - Good 3 - Fair 2 - Poor 1 - Very Poor

1 000X - Electrical Condition Lights functioning 
correctly generating the 
required illumination, not 
dim, and not on during the 
day.

Sample area 98% of lights within the 
sample are functioning 
properly.

95% of lights within the sample 
are functioning properly.

90% of lights within the sample 
are functioning properly.

80% of lights within the sample 
are functioning properly.

Less than 80% of lights within 
the sample are functioning 
properly.

2 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of repair of non-
functioning lights.

Evaluation Period 98% of non-functioning lights 
(excluding "no-currents) 
repaired within 4 days.

95% of non-functioning lights 
(excluding "no-currents) 
repaired within 4 days.

90% of non-functioning lights 
(excluding "no-currents") 
repaired within 4 days.

80% of non-functioning lights 
(excluding "no-currents) 
repaired within 4 days.

Less than 80% of non-
functioning lights (excluding "no-
currents) repaired within 4 days.

3 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of repair of non-
functioning lights in a CEFA

Evaluation Period 98% of  non-functioning lights 
(except “no-currents”) 
repaired within 48 hours of 
noted deficiency.

95% of  non-functioning lights 
(except “no-currents”) repaired 
within 48 hours of noted 
deficiency.

90% of  non-functioning lights 
(except “no-currents”) repaired 
within 48 hours of noted 
deficiency.

80% of  non-functioning lights 
(except “no-currents”) repaired 
within 48 hours of noted 
deficiency.

Less than 80% of  non-
functioning lights (except “no-
currents”) repaired within 48 
hours of noted deficiency.

4 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of repair of no-
current lights in a CEFA 
that do not require a cut

Evaluation Period 98% of “no-current” light 
outages not requiring a cut 
repaired within 4 days of the 
noted deficiency.

95% of “no-current” light 
outages not requiring a cut 
repaired within 4 days of the 
noted deficiency.

90% of “no-current” light 
outages not requiring a cut 
repaired within 4 days of the 
noted deficiency.

80% of “no-current” light 
outages not requiring a cut 
repaired within 4 days of the 
noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of “no-current” 
light outages not requiring a cut 
repaired within 4 days of the 
noted deficiency.

5 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of repair of no-
current lights in an CEFA 
requiring a cut

Evaluation Period 98% of “no-current” light 
outages requiring a cut 
repaired within 30 days of the 
noted deficiency.

95% of “no-current” light 
outages requiring a cut repaired 
within 30 days of the noted 
deficiency.

90% of “no-current” light 
outages requiring a cut repaired 
within 30 days of the noted 
deficiency.

80% of “no-current” light 
outages requiring a cut repaired 
within 30 days of the noted 
deficiency.

Less than 80% of “no-current” 
light outages requiring a cut 
repaired within 30 days of the 
noted deficiency.

6 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of repair of no-
current lights that do not 
require a cut

Evaluation Period 98% of “no-current” light 
outages not requiring a cut 
repaired within 15 days of the 
noted deficiency.

95% of “no-current” light 
outages not requiring a cut 
repaired within 15 days of the 
noted deficiency.

90% of “no-current” light 
outages not requiring a cut 
repaired within 15 days of the 
noted deficiency.

80% of “no-current” light 
outages not requiring a cut 
repaired within 15 days of the 
noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of “no-current” 
light outages not requiring a cut 
repaired within 15 days of the 
noted deficiency.

7 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of repair of no-
current lights requiring a 
cut

Evaluation Period 98% of “no-current” light 
outages requiring a cut 
repaired within 60 days of the 
noted deficiency.

95% of “no-current” light 
outages requiring a cut repaired 
within 60 days of the noted 
deficiency.

90% of “no-current” light 
outages requiring a cut repaired 
within 60 days of the noted 
deficiency.

80% of “no-current” light 
outages requiring a cut repaired 
within 60 days of the noted 
deficiency.

Less than 80% of “no-current” 
light outages requiring a cut 
repaired within 60 days of the 
noted deficiency.

8 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of repairs of 
multiple circuit no-current 
problems where an entire 
block is without lights.

Evaluation Period 98% of “no-current” problem 
on high-voltage series and 
multiple circuits repaired 
within 7 days of the noted 
deficiency.

95% of “no-current” problem on 
high-voltage series and multiple 
circuits repaired within 7 days of 
the noted deficiency.

90% of “no-current” problem on 
high-voltage series and multiple 
circuits repaired within 7 days of 
the noted deficiency.

80% of “no-current” problem on 
high-voltage series and multiple 
circuits repaired within 7 days of 
the noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of “no-current” 
problem on high-voltage series 
and multiple circuits repaired 
within 7 days of the noted 
deficiency.
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9 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of repair of 
“day burner” lights

Evaluation Period 98% of “day burner” street 
and alley lights repaired within 
4 days of the noted deficiency.

95% of “day burner” street and 
alley lights repaired within 4 
days of the noted deficiency.

90% of “day burner” street and 
alley lights repaired within 4 
days of the noted deficiency.

80% of “day burner” street and 
alley lights repaired within 4 
days of the noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of “day burner” 
street and alley lights repaired 
within 4 days of the noted 
deficiency.

10 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of repair of dim 
lights

Evaluation Period 98% of dim lights due to 
ballast assembly repaired 
within 4 days of the noted 
deficiency.

95% of dim lights due to ballast 
assembly repaired within 4 days 
of the noted deficiency.

90% of dim lights due to ballast 
assembly repaired within 4 days 
of the noted deficiency.

80% of dim lights due to ballast 
assembly repaired within 4 days 
of the noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of dim lights due 
to ballast assembly repaired 
within 4 days of the noted 
deficiency.

11 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of replacement 
of defective fixtures by 
conversion

Evaluation Period 98% of defective fixtures 
replaced by conversion within 
30 days of the noted 
deficiency.

95% of defective fixtures 
replaced by conversion within 
30 days of the noted deficiency.

90% of defective fixtures 
replaced by conversion within 
30 days of the noted deficiency.

80% of defective fixtures 
replaced by conversion within 
30 days of the noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of defective 
fixtures replaced by conversion 
within 30 days of the noted 
deficiency.

12 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of replacement 
of 2,500 MV,  INC, MH and 
HPS lights in non-white 
light areas with LEDs over 
4 yrs

Evaluation Period More than 625 ally and 
streetlight fixtures replaced 
with LEDs within a year.

625 ally and streetlight fixtures 
replaced with LEDs within a 
year.

More than 594 ally and 
streetlight fixtures replaced with 
LEDs within a year.

More than 563 ally and 
streetlight fixtures replaced with 
LEDs within a year

Less than 563 ally and streetlight 
fixtures replaced with LEDs 
within a year

13 000X - Electrical Condition Radio tower lights 
functioning

Entire Population All lights are functioning 
properly. 

2 lights on the tower are not 
functioning properly.

3 lights on the tower are not 
functioning properly.

4 lights on the tower are not 
functioning properly.

More than 4 lights on the tower 
are not functioning properly.

14 000X - Electrical Time Critical Non-functioning radio 
tower lights repaired in a 
timely manner.  Note – 
action is not required if 2 
or Less lights are out.

Evaluation Period 98% of noted deficiencies 
repaired within 3 days.

95% of noted deficiencies 
repaired within 3 days.

90% of noted deficiencies 
repaired within 3 days.

80% of noted deficiencies 
repaired within 3 days.

Less than 80% of noted 
deficiencies repaired within 3 
days.

15 000X - Electrical Condition Chinatown Archway lights 
functioning

Entire Population All lights are functioning 
properly. 

1 light is not functioning 
properly.

2 lights are not functioning 
properly.

3 lights are not functioning 
properly.

more than 3 lights are not 
functioning properly.

16 000X - Electrical Time Critical Non-functioning China 
Town archway lights are 
repaired in a timely 
manner

Evaluation Period 98% of non-functioning lights 
repaired within 15 days of the 
noted deficiency.

95% of non-functioning lights 
repaired within 15 days of the 
noted deficiency.

90% of non-functioning lights 
repaired within 15 days of the 
noted deficiency.

80% of non-functioning lights 
repaired within 15 days of the 
noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of non-
functioning lights repaired 
within 15 days of the noted 
deficiency.
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17 000X - Electrical Condition Bridge street lights 
functioning

Sample area 98% of bridge street lights are 
functioning properly.

95% of bridge street lights are 
functioning properly.

90% of bridge street lights are 
functioning properly.

80% of bridge street lights are 
functioning properly.

Less than 80% of bridge street 
lights are functioning properly.

18 000X - Electrical Condition Pedestrian bridge lighting 
functioning

Entire Population 98% of pedestrian bridge 
lights are functioning properly.

95% of pedestrian bridge lights 
are functioning properly.

90% of pedestrian bridge lights 
are functioning properly.

80% of pedestrian bridge lights 
are functioning properly.

Less than 80% of pedestrian 
bridge lights are functioning 
properly.

19 0009 - Bridge 
System and 
Navigation 

Lights

Condition Bridge underdeck lighting 
functioning

Entire Population 98% of bridge underdeck 
lights are functioning properly.

95% of bridge underdeck lights 
are functioning properly.

90% of bridge underdeck lights 
are functioning properly.

80% of bridge underdeck lights 
are functioning properly.

Less than 80% of bridge 
underdeck lights are functioning 
properly.

20 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of bridge 
lighting repair

Evaluation Period 98% of non-functioning light 
(excluding “no-currents”) 
repaired within 4 days of 
noted deficiency.

95% of non-functioning light 
(excluding “no-currents”) 
repaired within 4 days of noted 
deficiency.

90% of non-functioning light 
(excluding “no-currents”) 
repaired within 4 days of noted 
deficiency.

80% of non-functioning light 
(excluding “no-currents”) 
repaired within 4 days of noted 
deficiency.

Less than 80% of non-
functioning light (excluding “no-
currents”) repaired within 4 days 
of noted deficiency.

21 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of bridge 
lighting repair – No current

Evaluation Period 98% of “no-current” light 
outages repaired within 15 
days of the noted deficiency.

95% of “no-current” light 
outages repaired within 15 days 
of the noted deficiency.

90% of “no-current” light 
outages repaired within 15 days 
of the noted deficiency.

80% of “no-current” light 
outages repaired within 15 days 
of the noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of “no-current” 
light outages repaired within 15 
days of the noted deficiency.

22 000X - Electrical Condition Tunnel and underpass 
lighting functioning

Entire Population 98% of tunnel or underpass 
lights are functioning properly.

95% of tunnel or underpass 
lights are functioning properly.

90% of tunnel or underpass 
lights are functioning properly.

80% of tunnel or underpass 
lights are functioning properly.

Less than 80% of tunnel or 
underpass lights are functioning 
properly.

23 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of repair - 
tunnel and underpass 
lighting

Evaluation Period 98% of non-functioning lights 
(excluding “no-currents”) 
repaired within 5 days of 
noted deficiency.

95% of non-functioning lights 
(excluding “no-currents”) 
repaired within 5 days of noted 
deficiency.

90% of non-functioning lights 
(excluding “no-currents”) 
repaired within 5 days of noted 
deficiency.

80% of non-functioning lights 
(excluding “no-currents”) 
repaired within 5 days of noted 
deficiency.

Less than 80% of non-
functioning lights (excluding “no-
currents”) repaired within 5 days 
of noted deficiency.

24 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of repair – 
tunnel and underpass 
lights with no current

Evaluation Period 98% of “no-current” light 
outages repaired within 90 
days of the noted deficiency.

95% of “no-current” light 
outages repaired within 90 days 
of the noted deficiency.

90% of “no-current” light 
outages repaired within 90 days 
of the noted deficiency.

80% of “no-current” light 
outages repaired within 90 days 
of the noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of “no-current” 
light outages repaired within 90 
days of the noted deficiency.
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25 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of repair – 
tunnel and underpass 
lights with collision 
damage

Evaluation Period 98% of light outages due to 
collision damage repaired 
within 30 days of the noted 
deficiency.

95% of light outages due to 
collision damage repaired within 
30 days of the noted deficiency.

90% of light outages due to 
collision damage repaired within 
30 days of the noted deficiency.

80% of light outages due to 
collision damage repaired within 
30 days of the noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of light outages 
due to collision damage repaired 
within 30 days of the noted 
deficiency.

26 000X - Electrical Time Critical Respond and make safe 
Tunnel and underpass 
lights with collision 
damage

Evaluation Period 98% of tunnel light collision 
damage incidents responded 
to and made safe within 2 
hours of the noted deficiency.

95% of tunnel light collision 
damage incidents responded to 
and made safe within 2 hours of 
the noted deficiency.

90% of tunnel light collision 
damage incidents responded to 
and made safe within 2 hours of 
the noted deficiency.

80% of tunnel light collision 
damage incidents responded to 
and made safe within 2 hours of 
the noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of tunnel light 
collision damage incidents 
responded to and made safe 
within 2 hours of the noted 
deficiency.

27 000X - Electrical Condition Overhead guide sign 
lighting functioning

Entire Population 98% of overhead guide sign 
lights are functioning properly.

95% of overhead guide sign 
lights are functioning properly.

90% of overhead guide sign 
lights are functioning properly.

80% of overhead guide sign 
lights are functioning properly.

Less than 80% of overhead guide 
sign lights are functioning 
properly.

28 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of overhead 
guide sign repair

Evaluation Period 98% of non-functioning lights 
(excluding "no-currents”) 
repaired within 5 days of 
noted deficiency.

95% of non-functioning lights 
(excluding "no-currents”) 
repaired within 5 days of noted 
deficiency.

90% of non-functioning lights 
(excluding "no-currents”) 
repaired within 5 days of noted 
deficiency.

80% of non-functioning lights 
(excluding "no-currents”) 
repaired within 5 days of noted 
deficiency.

Less than 80% of non-
functioning lights (excluding "no-
currents”) repaired within 5 days 
of noted deficiency.

29 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of repair – 
overhead guide sign no 
current

Evaluation Period 98% of “no-current” light 
outages repaired within 45 
days of the noted deficiency.

95% of “no-current” light 
outages repaired within 45 days 
of the noted deficiency.

90% of “no-current” light 
outages repaired within 45 days 
of the noted deficiency.

80% of “no-current” light 
outages repaired within 45 days 
of the noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of “no-current” 
light outages repaired within 45 
days of the noted deficiency.

30 000X - Electrical Condition Welcome to Washington 
signs' lights functioning

Entire Population 98% of the lights on the sign 
are functioning properly.

95% of the lights on the sign are 
functioning properly.

90% of the lights on the sign are 
functioning properly.

80% of the lights on the sign are 
functioning properly.

Less than 80% of the lights on 
the sign are functioning 
properly.

31 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of repair - 
Welcome to Washington 
Signs

Evaluation Period 98% of non-functioning lights 
(excluding “no-currents”) 
repaired within 4 days of 
noted deficiency.

95% of non-functioning lights 
(excluding “no-currents”) 
repaired within 4 days of noted 
deficiency.

90% of non-functioning lights 
(excluding “no-currents”) 
repaired within 4 days of noted 
deficiency.

80% of non-functioning lights 
(excluding “no-currents”) 
repaired within 4 days of noted 
deficiency.

Less than 80% of non-
functioning lights (excluding “no-
currents”) repaired within 4 days 
of noted deficiency.

32 000X - Electrical Time Critical Timeliness of repair - 
Welcome to Washington 
Signs - no current

Evaluation Period 98% of Each “no-current” light 
outage repaired within 45 
days of the noted deficiency.

95% of Each “no-current” light 
outage repaired within 45 days 
of the noted deficiency.

90% of Each “no-current” light 
outage repaired within 45 days 
of the noted deficiency.

80% of Each “no-current” light 
outage repaired within 45 days 
of the noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of Each “no-
current” light outage repaired 
within 45 days of the noted 
deficiency.
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33 000X - Electrical Data Changes of wattage and 
light types reported to 
DDOT

Evaluation Period Contractor reports 98% of 
changes to DDOT within 30 
days of the repair/ 
replacement

Contractor reports 95% of 
changes to DDOT within 30 days 
of the repair/ replacement

Contractor reports 90% of  
changes to DDOT within 30 days 
of the repair/ replacement

Contractor reports 80% of  
changes to DDOT within 30 days 
of the repair/ replacement

Contractor reports Less than 
80% of changes to DDOT within 
30 days of the repair/ 
replacement

34 000X - Electrical Time Critical Response to Miss Utility 
Requests

Evaluation Period Contractor responds to 98% of 
Miss Utility Requests within 2 
days.

Contractor responds to 95% of 
Miss Utility Requests within 2 
days.

Contractor responds to 90% of 
Miss Utility Requests within 2 
days.

Contractor responds to 80% of 
Miss Utility Requests within 2 
days.

Contractor responds to Less 
than 80% of Miss Utility 
Requests within 2 days.

35 000X - 
Structural

Time Critical Timeliness of repair of 
Washington Globes

Evaluation Period 98% of broken or missing 
globes replaced within 4 days 
of the noted deficiency.

95% of broken or missing globes 
replaced within 4 days of the 
noted deficiency.

90% of broken or missing globes 
replaced within 4 days of the 
noted deficiency.

80% of broken or missing globes 
replaced within 4 days of the 
noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of broken or 
missing globes replaced within 4 
days of the noted deficiency.

36 000X - 
Structural

Condition Pole and Base access holes 
are properly covered.

Sample area 95% of access holes are 
properly covered with covers 
of the correct size and fit.

90% of access holes are properly 
covered with covers of the 
correct size and fit.

85% of access holes are properly 
covered with covers of the 
correct size and fit.

80% of access holes are properly 
covered with covers of the 
correct size and fit.

Less than 80% of access holes 
are properly covered with covers 
of the correct size and fit.

37 000X - 
Structural

Time Critical Pole and Base access holes 
are properly covered in a 
timely manner

Evaluation Period 98% of missing or improperly 
covered access holes properly 
covered within 30 days of the 
noted deficiency.

95% of missing or improperly 
covered access holes properly 
covered within 30 days of the 
noted deficiency.

90% of missing or improperly 
covered access holes properly 
covered within 30 days of the 
noted deficiency.

80% of missing or improperly 
covered access holes properly 
covered within 30 days of the 
noted deficiency.

Less than 98% of missing or 
improperly covered access holes 
properly covered within 30 days 
of the noted deficiency.

38 000X - 
Structural

Condition Light poles are vertical. Sample area 98% of light poles are within 
10 degrees of vertical.

95% of light poles are within 10 
degrees of vertical.

90% of light poles are within 10 
degrees of vertical.

80% of light poles are within 10 
degrees of vertical.

Less than 80% of light poles are 
within 10 degrees of vertical.

39 000X - 
Structural

Time Critical Leaning poles are repaired 
in a timely manner

Evaluation Period 98% of leaning poles repaired 
within 7 days of the noted 
deficiency.

95% of leaning poles repaired 
within 7 days of the noted 
deficiency.

90% of leaning poles repaired 
within 7 days of the noted 
deficiency.

80% of leaning poles repaired 
within 7 days of the noted 
deficiency.

Less than 80% of leaning poles 
repaired within 7 days of the 
noted deficiency.

40 000X - 
Structural

Time Critical Trees are trimmed from 
around lights

Evaluation Period 98% of trees blocking a light  
properly trimmed within 15 
days of the noted deficiency.

95% of trees blocking a light  
properly trimmed within 15 days 
of the noted deficiency.

90% of trees blocking a light  
properly trimmed within 15 days 
of the noted deficiency.

80% of trees blocking a light  
properly trimmed within 15 days 
of the noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of trees blocking 
a light  properly trimmed within 
15 days of the noted deficiency.
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41 000X - 
Structural

Condition Elephant ears in place and 
secured.

Sample area 95% of elephant ears are in 
place and properly secured.

90% of elephant ears are in 
place and properly secured.

85% of elephant ears are in 
place and properly secured.

80% of elephant ears are in 
place and properly secured.

Less than 80% of elephant ears 
are in place and properly 
secured.

42 000X - 
Structural

Time Critical Missing elephant ears are 
replaced in a timely 
manner

Evaluation Period 98% of missing elephant ears 
replaced within 10 days of the 
noted deficiency.

95% of missing elephant ears 
replaced within 10 days of the 
noted deficiency.

90% of missing elephant ears 
replaced within 10 days of the 
noted deficiency.

80% of missing elephant ears 
replaced within 10 days of the 
noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of missing 
elephant ears replaced within 10 
days of the noted deficiency.

43 000X - 
Structural

Condition T-bases structurally sound 
and free of defects.

Sample area 98% of T-bases are structurally 
sound and free of defects.  

95% of T-bases are structurally 
sound and free of defects.  

90% of T-bases are structurally 
sound and free of defects.  

80% of T-bases are structurally 
sound and free of defects.  

Less than 80% of T-bases are 
structurally sound and free of 
defects.  

44 000X - 
Structural

Time Critical Timeliness of replacement 
of deficient T-Bases

Evaluation Period 98% of T-bases meeting one or 
more specified criteria for 
replacement replaced within 
30 days of the noted 
deficiency.

95% of T-bases meeting one or 
more specified criteria for 
replacement replaced within 30 
days of the noted deficiency.

90% of T-bases meeting one or 
more specified criteria for 
replacement replaced within 30 
days of the noted deficiency.

80% of T-bases meeting one or 
more specified criteria for 
replacement replaced within 30 
days of the noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of T-bases 
meeting one or more specified 
criteria for replacement replaced 
within 30 days of the noted 
deficiency.

45 000X - 
Structural

Condition Wood poles structurally 
sound 

Sample area 98% of wood poles are 
structurally sound and pass 
the specified test.

95% of wood poles are 
structurally sound and pass the 
specified test.

90% of wood poles are 
structurally sound and pass the 
specified test.

80% of wood poles are 
structurally sound and pass the 
specified test.

Less than 80% of wood poles are 
structurally sound and pass the 
specified test.

46 000X - 
Structural

Time Critical Timeliness of replacement 
of deficient Wood Poles

Evaluation Period 98% of wood poles failing the 
specified test (see Appendix E) 
replaced within 30 days of the 
test failure.

95% of wood poles failing the 
specified test (see Appendix E) 
replaced within 30 days of the 
test failure.

90% of wood poles failing the 
specified test (see Appendix E) 
replaced within 30 days of the 
test failure.

80% of wood poles failing the 
specified test (see Appendix E) 
replaced within 30 days of the 
test failure.

Less than 80% of wood poles 
failing the specified test (see 
Appendix E) replaced within 30 
days of the test failure.

47 000X - 
Structural

Time Critical Manhole and handhold 
inspection/repair

Evaluation Period 98% of deficient manholes and 
handholds repaired within 30 
days of identification of the 
deficiency.

95% of deficient manholes and 
handholds repaired within 30 
days of identification of the 
deficiency.

90% of deficient manholes and 
handholds repaired within 30 
days of identification of the 
deficiency.

80% of deficient manholes and 
handholds repaired within 30 
days of identification of the 
deficiency.

Less than 80% of deficient 
manholes and handholds 
repaired within 30 days of 
identification of the deficiency.

48 000X - 
Structural

Condition Manhole and handhole 
rim near pavement grade

Sample area 98% of manhole and 
handholes rims are <= 1/2"   
above or below roadway 
grade.

95% of manholes and handholes 
and handholes rims are <= 1/2"  
above or below roadway grade.

90% of manhole and handholes 
and handholes rims are <= 1/2"  
above or below roadway grade.

85% of manhole and handholes 
rims are <= 1/2"  above or below 
roadway grade.

Less than 85% of manhole and 
handholes rims are <= 1/2"  
above or below roadway grade.
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49 000X - 
Structural

Condition Manholes and handholes 
structurally sound

Sample area 98% of manhole and handhole 
rims are structurally sound 
with a structurally sound, 
undamaged cover <= 1/8" 
above or below the manhole 
rim.

95% of manhole and handholes 
rims are structurally sound with 
a structurally sound, undamaged 
cover <= 1/8" above or below 
the manhole rim.

90% of manhole and handholes 
rims are structurally sound with 
a structurally sound, undamaged 
cover <= 1/8" above or below 
the manhole rim.

80% of manhole and handholes 
rims are structurally sound with 
a structurally sound, undamaged 
cover <= 1/8" above or below 
the manhole rim.

Less than 80% of manhole and 
handholes rims are structurally 
sound with a structurally sound, 
undamaged cover <= 1/8" above 
or below the manhole rim.

50 000X - 
Structural

Condition Manholes and handholes 
free of dirt water and 
debris.

Sample area 98% of manholes and 
handholes are free of dirt, 
water, and debris.

95% of manholes are handholes 
are free of dirt, water, and 
debris.

90% of manholes and handholes 
are free of dirt, water, and 
debris.

80% of manholes and handholes 
are free of dirt, water, and 
debris.

Less than 80% of manholes and 
handholes are free of dirt, 
water, and debris.

51 000X - 
Structural

Time Critical Timeliness of repair of out 
of grade 
manholes/handholes or 
manholes/handholes with 
structural problems

Evaluation Period 98% of inspected 
manholes/handholes not 
within ½ inch of pavement 
grade or with structural 
problems repaired within 20 
days of the inspection. 

95% of inspected 
manholes/handholes not within 
½ inch of pavement grade or 
with structural problems 
repaired within 20 days of the 
inspection. 

90% of inspected 
manholes/handholes not within 
½ inch of pavement grade or 
with structural problems 
repaired within 20 days of the 
inspection. 

80% of inspected 
manhole/handholes not within 
½ inch of pavement grade or 
with structural problems 
repaired within 20 days of the 
inspection. 

Less than 80% of inspected 
manhole/handholes not within 
½ inch of pavement grade or 
with structural problems 
repaired within 20 days of the 
inspection. 

52 000X - 
Structural

Time Critical Timeliness of cleaning of 
inspected manholes and 
handholes

Evaluation Period 98% of inspected manholes 
and handholes not free of dirt, 
water and debris cleaned 
within 20 days of the 
inspection.

95% of inspected manholes and 
handholds not free of dirt, water 
and debris cleaned within 20 
days of the inspection.

90% of inspected manholes and 
handholds not free of dirt, water 
and debris cleaned within 20 
days of the inspection.

80% of inspected manholes and 
handholes not free of dirt, water 
and debris cleaned within 20 
days of the inspection.

Less than 80% of inspected 
manholes and handholes not 
free of dirt, water and debris 
cleaned within 20 days of the 
inspection.

53 000X - 
Structural

Time Critical Timeliness of knock-downs 
being “made safe”

Evaluation Period 98% of pole knock-downs 
“made safe” within 2 hours of 
the noted deficiency.

95% of pole knock-downs “made 
safe” within 2 hours of the 
noted deficiency.

90% of pole knock-downs “made 
safe” within 2 hours of the 
noted deficiency.

80% of pole knock-downs “made 
safe” within 2 hours of the 
noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of pole knock-
downs “made safe” within 2 
hours of the noted deficiency.

54 000X - 
Structural

Time Critical Timeliness of knock-down 
replacement

Evaluation Period 98% of pole knockdowns 
replaced within 45 days of 
knockdown.

95% of pole knockdowns 
replaced within 45 days of 
knockdown.

90% of pole knockdowns 
replaced within 45 days of 
knockdown.

80% of pole knockdowns 
replaced within 45 days of 
knockdown.

Less than 80% of pole 
knockdowns replaced within 45 
days of knockdown.

55 000X - 
Structural

Time Critical Timeliness of missing pole 
replacement

Evaluation Period 98% of missing poles 
(including backlogged 
knockdowns) replaced within 
90 days of noted deficiency.

95% of missing poles (including 
backlogged knockdowns) 
replaced within 90 days of noted 
deficiency.

90% of missing poles (including 
backlogged knockdowns) 
replaced within 90 days of noted 
deficiency.

80% of missing poles (including 
backlogged knockdowns) 
replaced within 90 days of noted 
deficiency.

Less than 80% of missing poles 
(including backlogged 
knockdowns) replaced within 90 
days of noted deficiency.

56 000X - 
Structural

Time Critical Respond and make safe -
Damaged overhead signs/ 
structures

Evaluation Period 98% of damaged overhead 
sign structures responded to 
and made safe within 2 hours 
of the noted deficiency.

95% of damaged overhead sign 
structures responded to and 
made safe within 2 hours of the 
noted deficiency.

90% of damaged overhead sign 
structures responded to and 
made safe within 2 hours of the 
noted deficiency.

80% of damaged overhead sign 
structures responded to and 
made safe within 2 hours of the 
noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of damaged 
overhead sign structures 
responded to and made safe 
within 2 hours of the noted 
deficiency.

57 000X - 
Structural

Data Asset inventory is updated 
based on changes to field 
assets including new 
assets, incorrect assets, 
new/updated pole 
number, or changes to 

Evaluation Period Contractor reports 98% of 
changes to DDOT within 30 
days of the repair/ 
replacement

Contractor reports 95% of 
changes to DDOT within 30 days 
of the repair/ replacement

Contractor reports 90% of  
changes to DDOT within 30 days 
of the repair/ replacement

Contractor reports 80% of  
changes to DDOT within 30 days 
of the repair/ replacement

Contractor reports Less than 
80% of changes to DDOT within 
30 days of the repair/ 
replacement
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58 000X - Ward Managemen
t

Report delivery Evaluation Period 98% of plans and reports 
required under the contract 
are delivered on time.

95% of plans and reports 
required under the contract are 
delivered on time.

90% of plans and reports 
required under the contract are 
delivered on time.

80% of plans and reports 
required under the contract are 
delivered on time.

Less than 80% of plans and 
reports required under the 
contract are delivered on time.

59 000X - Ward Time Critical Maintenance Management 
System Updated Daily

Evaluation Period 98% of open work orders are 
updated within 24 hours of 
the last activity performed due 
to inspection and 
maintenance.

95% of open work orders are 
updated within 24 hours of the 
last activity performed due to 
inspection and maintenance.

90% of open work orders are 
updated within 24 hours of the 
last activity performed due to 
inspection and maintenance.

80% of open work orders are 
updated within 24 hours of the 
last activity performed due to 
inspection and maintenance.

Less than 80% of open work 
orders are updated within 24 
hours of the last activity 
performed due to inspection 
and maintenance.

60 000X - Ward Managemen
t

Frequency of Complaints Evaluation Period 5% Less call center lighting 
complaints than the previous 
year

0.1-4.9% Less call center lighting 
complaints than the previous 
year

The same number of call center 
lighting complaints than the 
previous year

Less than 5% more call center 
lighting complaints than the 
previous year

Over 5% call center lighting 
complaints than the previous 
year

61 0009 - Bridge 
System and 
Navigation 

Lights

Condition Bridge navigation lights 
functioning

Entire Population 98% of bridge navigation lights 
are functioning properly.

95% of bridge navigation lights 
are functioning properly.

90% of bridge navigation lights 
are functioning properly.

80% of bridge navigation lights 
are functioning properly.

Less than 80% of bridge 
navigation lights are functioning 
properly.

62 0009 - Bridge 
System and 
Navigation 

Lights

Time Critical Timeliness of repair – 
Navigation Lights

Evaluation Period 98% of navigation light 
outages repaired within 24 
hours of the noted deficiency.

95% of navigation light outages 
repaired within 24 hours of the 
noted deficiency.

90% of navigation light outages 
repaired within 24 hours of the 
noted deficiency.

80% of navigation light outages 
repaired within 24 hours of the 
noted deficiency.

Less than 80% of navigation light 
outages repaired within 24 
hours of the noted deficiency.

63 0009 - Bridge 
System and 
Navigation 

Lights

Time Critical Bridge control system 
maintenance

Once a year Inspections and maintenance 
are performed in accordance 
with Chapter 2 of the 
Operation and Maintenance 
Manual

Inspections and maintenance 
are almost always performed in 
accordance with Chapter 2 of 
the Operation and Maintenance 
Manual.  1 or item is missed per 
year.

Inspections and maintenance 
are mostly always performed in 
accordance with Chapter 2 of 
the Operation and Maintenance 
Manual.  2 or Less items are 
missed per year.

Inspections and maintenance 
are usually performed in 
accordance with Chapter 2 of 
the Operation and Maintenance 
Manual.  4 or Less items are 
missed per year.

Inspections called for in the 
Operations and Maintenance 
Manual are not performed in 
accordance with Chapter 2 of 
the Operation and Maintenance 
Manual.  More than 4 items are 

  64 0009 - Bridge 
System and 
Navigation 

Lights

Condition Bridge electrical control 
systems are functional

Entire Population All components of the bridge 
electrical control system are 
maintained in excellent 
working order and are clean 
(free of dirt, allowing freedom 
of moving parts) .

All components of the bridge 
electrical control system are 
maintained in proper working 
order.

90% of components of the 
bridge electrical control system 
are maintained in proper 
working order.

80% of components of the 
bridge electrical control system 
are maintained in proper 
working order.

Less than 80% of components of 
the bridge electrical control 
system are maintained in proper 
working order.

65 0009 - Bridge 
System and 
Navigation 

Lights

Condition Bridge opening 
mechanism functional

Once a month Bridge is exercised (opened) 
within 1 week after the end of 
a month during which there 
were no ships.

Bridge is exercised (opened) 
within 2 weeks after the end of a 
month during which there were 
no ships.

Bridge is exercised (opened) 
within 3 weeks after the end of a 
month during which there were 
no ships.

Bridge is exercised (opened) 
during the month after the end 
of a month during which there 
were no ships.

Bridge is not exercised (opened) 
during the month after the end 
of a month during which there 
were no ships; or the report 
documenting the bridge exercise 
is not delivered.
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66 0009 - Bridge 
System and 
Navigation 

Lights

Condition Bridge opening 
mechanism functional

Once a month Bridge opened immediately 
(no delays due to mechanical 
malfunction) for all ships and 
report delivered on time.

Bridge opened with minor (no 
more than 5 minutes) delay due 
to mechanical malfunction for 
all ships and report delivered on 
time.

Bridge opened with significant 
delays (no more than 1 hour) for 
no more than 1 ship and report 
delivered on time.

Bridge opened with significant 
delays (no more than 2 hours) 
for no more than 2 ships and 
report delivered on time.

Bridge failed to open or opened 
with major delays (more than 1 
hour) for 1 or more ships; or the 
report documenting bridge 
openings is not delivered on 
time.

67 0011 - Pole 
Painting

Time Critical Poles without adequate 
paint coverage that 
generate complaints are 
painted in a timely manner

Evaluation Period 98% of poles not having 
adequate paint coverage to 
prevent corrosion painted 
within 30 days of the direction 
of DDOT. 

95% of poles not having 
adequate paint coverage to 
prevent corrosion painted within 
30 days of the direction of 
DDOT. 

90% of poles not having 
adequate paint coverage to 
prevent corrosion painted within 
30 days of the direction of 
DDOT. 

80% of poles not having 
adequate paint coverage to 
prevent corrosion painted within 
30 days of the direction of 
DDOT. 

Less than 80% of poles not 
having adequate paint coverage 
to prevent corrosion painted 
within 30 days of the direction 
of DDOT. 

68 0012 - Lighting 
Fixture 

Conversion/ 
Upgrade per 

100

Time Critical Timeliness of replacement 
of lighting fixtures by 
conversion

Evaluation Period 98% of specified batched 
amount of fixtures replaced by 
conversion/upgrade within a 
year.

95% of specified batched 
amount of fixtures replaced by 
conversion/upgrade within a 
year.

90% of specified batched 
amount of fixtures replaced by 
conversion/upgrade within a 
year.

80% of specified batched 
amount of fixtures replaced by 
conversion/upgrade within a 
year.

Less than 80% of specified 
batched amount of fixtures 
replaced by conversion/upgrade 
within a year.

69 0013-Remote 
Monitoring 

System 
Installation 

Time Critical The contractor shall be 
responsible for installing 
new photo control 
communications nodes 
according to the plan and 
specifications provided by 
DDOT or his designee.

Evaluation Period 98% of the specified batched 
amount of ROAM photo 
control nodes are installed 
within 30 days of the direction 
of DDOT.

95% of the specified batched 
amount of ROAM photo control 
nodes are installed within 30 
days of the direction of DDOT.

90% of the specified batched 
amount of ROAM photo control 
nodes are installed within 30 
days of the direction of DDOT.

80% of the specified batched 
amount of ROAM photo control 
nodes are installed within 30 
days of the direction of DDOT.

Less than 80% of the specified 
batched amount of ROAM photo 
control nodes are installed 
within 30 days of the direction 
of DDOT.

70 0013-Remote 
Monitoring 

System 
Maintenance

Time Critical Nodes repaired within 24 
hours of notification.

Evaluation Period 98% of malfunctioning nodes 
repaired within 24 hours 

95% of malfunctioning nodes 
repaired within 24 hours 

90% of malfunctioning nodes 
repaired within 24 hours 

80% of malfunctioning nodes 
repaired within 24 hours 

Fewer than 80% of 
malfunctioning nodes repaired 
within 24 hours.  

71 0013-Remote 
Monitoring 

System 
Maintenance

Condition Once ROAM is installed, 
the contractor is 
responsible for 
maintaining system 
operability.

Entire Population Minimum ROAM system 
operability of 99%.

Minimum ROAM system 
operability of 95%.

Minimum ROAM system 
operability of 90%.

Minimum ROAM system 
operability of 85%.

Minimum ROAM system 
operability below 85%.
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1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Capture Mechanism Sampling Weight

Visual inspection of lights All inspected lights. 8

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 6

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 6

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 6

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 6

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 6

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 6

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 7
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9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

Capture Mechanism Sampling Weight

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 5.5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 6

Inspection All relevant Work Orders. 6

Visual inspection of lights Entire population 7.5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 7.5

Visual inspection of lights Entire population 5.5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 5.5
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17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Capture Mechanism Sampling Weight

Visual inspection of lights All inspected lights. 6.5

Visual inspection of lights All inspected lights. 6.5

Visual inspection of lights All inspected lights. 6.5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 6

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 6

Visual inspection of lights Entire population 7

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 6

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 6
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25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

Capture Mechanism Sampling Weight

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 7

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 8

Visual inspection of lights All inspected lights. 5.5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 5.5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 5.5

Visual inspection of lights All inspected Welcome to 
Washington signs.

5.5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 5.5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 5.5
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33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

Capture Mechanism Sampling Weight

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 7

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 7.5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 6.5

Visual inspection of pole 
access holes and covers.

All inspected poles. 9

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 7.5

Visual inspection 
supplemented by plumb bob

All inspected poles. 5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 4.5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 6.5
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41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

Capture Mechanism Sampling Weight

Visual inspection of elephant 
ears

All inspected poles. 3

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 3

Visual inspection of T-bases All inspected poles. 8.5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 8.5

Visual inspection of wood 
poles

All inspected poles. 7

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 7

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 7.5

Visual inspection of manhole 
and handhole rim 
supplemented by manual 
measurement

All inspected manholes. 7
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49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

Capture Mechanism Sampling Weight

Visual inspection of manhole 
and handholes and cover 
supplemented by manual 
measurement

All inspected manholes. 7.5

Visual inspection of manhole 
and handholes

All inspected manholes. 5.5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 5.5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 5.5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 8

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 7.5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 6.5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 6.5

Maintenance Management 
System

8
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58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

Capture Mechanism Sampling Weight

DDOT Lighting Team 6.5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 7.5

Maintenance Management 
System

All calls. 8

Visual inspection of lights All inspected lights. 7

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 7.5

Timely report delivery 1 bridge per year. 6

Maintenance report Every month 6

Maintenance report Per bridge opening exercise 5
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66

67

68

69

70

71

Capture Mechanism Sampling Weight

Maintenance report Per bridge opening event 6

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 6

Inspection and Maintenance 
Management System

All relevant Work Orders. 7

Inspection All relevant Work Orders. 6.5

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 8

Maintenance Management 
System

All relevant Work Orders. 7.5
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RA02 Appendix N:  S. Capitol Bridge Components  

Assets Included in CLIN0009 Douglass Bridge (S. Capitol Street Bridge) 

All interior and all catwalk lighting, control wiring and related devices including fixtures, bulbs, boxes, 
breakers, wiring, wiring to a/c unit, outlets, switches, conduits, push switches, window shade control 
switches and bulbs for the Main control board and al related equipment in the control booth 
(4) Semaphore gates and all related operation equipment such as motors, warning lights, conduits, 
wiring, relays, contactors, limit switches, disc connect switches, motor controllers, brake motor 
assemblies and all related equipment 
The end toggles and center wedges including motors, limit switches, wiring, conduits, relays 
contactors, overloads, disconnect switches and all related equipment. 
Navigation lights including fixtures, bulbs, wiring, conduits, contactors, timing devices, breakers and all 
related equipment 
Traffic signals on the roadway including poles, fixtures, bulbs, wiring, conduits, relays, contactors, 
disconnect switches and related equipment 
Light poles and fixtures mounted on the swing span, fed form bridge circuit 
The main feeder from PEPCO’s underground transformers on the Anacostia & DC ends including 
conduits, wiring, cabinets, switchgear, and all related equipment  
The submarine cables from both the DC & Anacostia ends including cable, conduit, switchgear and all 
related equipment 
The main level of the tower including switchgear, main disconnect switches, transfer switch, lighting, 
fixtures, bulbs, wiring, conduits, panel boards, outlets, switches and related equipment 
The main machine decks including motors, motor controllers, brake motors and assemblies, motor 
bearings, switch gear, disconnect switches, relays, limit switches, contactors, overload devices, transfer 
switches, timing devices, lighting, fixtures, bulbs, wiring, conduits, breakers and all related equipment. 
Mechanical systems and their components 
Switchboards 
Adjustable frequency drives 
Moto control centers 
Control cabinets 
Barrier gates 
Fire alarm system 
Heating and AC Units 
Structural elements (For the major items, COTR will determine) 
Radio Systems 
Fan Systems 
Gas Detection System 
Transformer located on the bridge structure 
Pumping systems 
Telephone Systems 
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Assets Not Included in CLIN0009 Douglass Bridge (S. Capitol Street Bridge) 

Transformers located off of the bridge structure  (Owned by Pepco) 
 

The contract covers the rehabilitation and maintenance of the covered assets.  Full replacement of 
major components is beyond the scope of this contract.   
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RA02 Appendix U: 
Currently Evaluated LED 

 



Manufacturer Type Voltage
Wattage/T
ype

Shipping 
Weight Description Model Nomenclature Mount Quant.

Lighting Science Cobra Head 46 lbs
Roadway LED Lighting 
System, Type III DBR10004 DBR2CWR3MVOLT 4B PCR SH GR 2

Relume Cobra Head 110-277V
265 
(nominal) W 50 lbs Vue 2.5 Series

VUE 400, 110-277V, AC 
60Hz 2

Philips Cobra Head 120-277V LED 22 lbs
Gray Clear Glass, RX 
Series C7951-I3NA5RNAN 2

Elumen Cobra Head 20 lbs LED Streetlight SEG200NC3TMR5A 2

Beta Cobra Head 120-277V LED 29.2 lbs BXUL0203D-UC
STR-LWY-2M-HT-03-D-UL-SV-525-
UTL 2

GE Cobra Head 120-277V LED 31.4 lbs.
Evolve LED Series R150 
Roadway Medium ERMC0C343A2GRAY 2

Holophane Cobra Head LED LEDgend LEDG120534KASGL2R 2

Philips Teardrop 120-277V 530MA 50 lbs Black Long Acrylic C7950-AKL3NA5NN 2

Holophane Teardrop LED ESLT1505KASBR Teardrop Utility Esplanade LED 2
Spring City Teardrop Columbia LED 2

Philips Upright 120-277V 150W Black Clear Poly C7949-A5NA5RNAN
CA7950-
A 2

Holophane Upright LED WFL1055KASBL3BH UTY WASH POSTLITE FCO LED 2
Spring City Upright Washington LED 2

Leotek Cobrahead 120-277V LED 25 lbs
LED Replacement for 
400W Cobrahead

GC2/GCA2-120E-MV-NW-
2-GY-700 LED Green King Cobra 2

Currenlty Evaluated LED
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